# FILED

SID J. WHITE

#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

APR 24 1998

CLERK, SUPREME COURT By\_\_\_\_\_\_ Chief Deputy Clerk

DAVID L MADDOX,	)	
	)	
Petitio	ner, )	E
	)	
vs.	)	E
	)	
STATE OF FLORIDA,	)	
	)	
Respond	lent. )	
_	)	

ŧ

.

## FSC Case No. 92,805

Fifth DCA Case No. 96-3590

## ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

#### PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

MICHAEL BECKER ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER FLORIDA BAR NO. 0267082 112 Orange Avenue, Suite A Daytona Beach, FL 32114 (904) 252-3367

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

##

#### STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS

The Petitioner pled nolo contendere to one count of burglary of a structure specifically preserving his right to appeal the trial court's order denying his motion to suppress. On appeal the Office of the Public Defender filed a brief pursuant to <u>Anders v.</u> <u>California</u>, 386 U.S. 738 (1967) asserting that it could find no meritorious issues to argue on appeal but drew attention to the issue concerning the motion to suppress. The Office of the Attorney General filed a notice of intent not to file a brief unless requested to do so by the court. Thereafter, the court sua sponte ordered counsel for Petitioner to supplement the record with the transcript of the sentencing hearing which had not originally

been requested to be included in the original record on appeal. No brief was filed arguing any issues concerning sentencing.

On March 13, 1998, the court sitting en banc issued its opinion affirming the trial court's ruling concerning the motion to suppress. However, the court then identified certain sentencing errors including improper assessment of costs. The court then determined that pursuant to the Criminal Appeal Reform Act all sentencing issues must be preserved before an appellate court can consider them. The court noted that this includes all unlawful sentencing errors as well as any errors that would render a sentence illegal. In reaching its decision the Fifth District Court of Appeal receded from several earlier opinions wherein they addressed sentencing errors absent objection. The court also noted that by its opinion they disagreed with the contrary results reached by other district courts of appeal insofar as those courts continue to recognize the concept of fundamental error in the sentencing context. The court specifically noted the contrary opinions issued in Choinowski v. State, 22 Fla.L.Weekly D2660 (Fla. 2nd DCA November 19, 1997); Pryor v. State, 22 Fla.L. Weekly D2500 (Fla. 3rd DCA October 29, 1997); *Johnson v. State*, 701 So.2d 382 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997); Cowan v. State, 701 So.2d 353 (Fla. 1st DCA

1997); <u>Callins v. State</u>, 698 So.2d 883 (Fla. 4th DCA 1997). The court also noted its disagreement with decisions that have held that errors that render a sentence illegal are fundamental and thus can be raised absent objection. <u>State v. Hewitt</u>, 702 So.2d 633 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997) and <u>Sanders v. State</u>, 698 So.2d 377 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997); <u>Maddox v. State</u>, 23 Fla.L. Weekly D720 (Fla. 5th DCA March 13, 1998) (copy attached as Appendix hereto) Petitioner filed a timely notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this court.

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal sub judice is in direct conflict with decisions emanating from several other district courts of appeal insofar as it holds that absent objection no sentencing issue can be raised on direct appeal even if such error results in an illegal sentence.

#### ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN <u>MADDOX V. STATE</u>, 23 FLA.L. WEEKLY D 720 (FLA. 5TH DCA MARCH 13, 1998) SPECIFICALLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH DECISIONS FROM OTHER DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL INCLUDING <u>STATE V. HEWITT</u>, 702 SO.2D 633 (FLA. 1ST DCA 1977); <u>CHOJNOWSKI V. STATE</u>, 22 FLA.L. WEEKLY D 2660 (FLA. 2ND DCA NOVEMBER 19, 1997); <u>CALLINS</u> <u>V. STATE</u>, 698 SO.2D 883 (FLA. 4TH DCA 1997), SO AS TO PROVIDE A BASIS FOR THIS COURT TO EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY REVIEW TO REVIEW THE INSTANT CASE.

The decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal herein concluded that in light of the Criminal Appeal Reform Act, an appellate court will no longer address any error that is not preserved by a proper objection below. In particular, the court was dealing with sentencing errors which prior to the enactment of the Criminal Appeal Reform Act were considered fundamental and thus could be addressed on appeal even absent objection. By its decision, the Fifth District Court of Appeal has in effect ruled there can never be fundamental error in the sentencing context. The court has extended this holding to include not just unlawful sentences such as the imposition of costs without statutory authority but also illegal sentences such as those sentences which exceed the statutory maximum permitted for various crimes. Every

other district court of appeal has recognized that the concept of fundamental can be present in the sentencing context. In Chojnowski v. State, 22 Fla.L. Weekly D 2660 (Fla. 2nd DCA November 19, 1997) interpreted the Criminal Appeal Reform Act to require most sentencing errors to be preserved either by a timely objection or by filing a timely motion pursuant to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.800 (b) to correct the sentence. Specifically the court noted "the failure to file a timely motion under Rule 3.800 (b) forecloses direct or collateral review of an alleged sentencing error that is not fundamental." In Pryor v. State, 22 Fla.L. Weekly D2500 (Fla. 3rd DCA October 29, 1997) the district court held that Pryor had not preserved a particular sentencing issue for appeal and noted "Pryor's appeal is barred, as it was not properly preserved for review and does not show fundamental error on the part of the sentencing court." In Callins v. State, 698 So.2d 883 (Fla. 4th DCA 1997) the court refused to consider a particular issue on appeal. The defendant had filed a motion to correct the sentence under Rule 3.800 (b), but filed a notice of appeal prior to getting a ruling on the motion and thus did not preserve it. However, the court noted "the only issue appellant preserved for appeal is the <u>legality of the sentence</u>." Finally in <u>State v.</u>

*Hewitt*, 702 So.2d 633 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997) in reviewing an appeal brought by the state the court specifically held:

Our task in the case at bar is to decide whether the sentence imposed was unlawful or illegal. If it is illegal, then it constitutes error that may be corrected at anytime without an objection.<sup>1</sup>

It is clear then that every district court of appeal except for the Fifth District recognizes that notwithstanding the Criminal Appeal Reform Act, illegal sentences are still appealable and can be addressed by appellate courts absent objection. The recognition by these courts that the concept of fundamental error still exists in the sentencing context is clearly contemplated by the Criminal Appeal Reform Act itself. The decision of the Fifth District disagreeing with this concept creates conflict and thus permits this Court to exercise its discretionary review to review the instant case.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Although not cited in the opinion below, the First District Court of Appeal in <u>Mason v. State</u>, 23 Fla.L Weekly D944 (Fla. 1st DCA April 9, 1998) adhered to its rulings concerning illegal sentences being appealable notwithstanding the failure to object thereto and specifically refused to follow the Fifth District in the case sub judice.

#### CONCLUSION

Based on the reasons and authorities cited herein, Petitioner respectfully this Honorable Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and except the instant case for review to resolve the conflict.