IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

OUS FILED SID J. WHITE MAY 14 1998 CLERK, SUPREME COURT

DAVID L. MADDOX,

By_____ Chief Deputy Clerk

Petitioner,

v.

1

CASE NO. 92,805

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

WESLEY HEIDT ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL Fla. Bar #773026 444 Seabreeze Blvd. Fifth Floor Daytona Beach, FL 32118 (904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Petitioner's attorney filed an <u>Anders</u> brief in this case after the Petitioner pled nolo contendere to burglary of a structure reserving for appeal only the issue of the trial court's denial of his motion to suppress. The Fifth District Court of Appeal (the Fifth) sitting en bang in the case Maddox v. State, 23 Fla. L. Weekly D720 (Fla. 5th DCA March 13, 1998), elected to address the application of the recent changes in the Florida statutes and the rules of criminal and appellate procedure as to the preservation and appeal of sentencing issues. The Fifth wrote that "[I]t appears that the supreme court has concluded that the notion of `fundamental error' should be limited to trial errors, not sentencing errors." Id. at 721. The Fifth also held "[N]or will this court address illegal sentences on direct appeal, unless the issue has been preserved for review either by objection in the trial court or by means of a 3.800(b) motion for post-conviction Maddox, 23 Fla. L. Weekly at D721. Later in its relief." decision, the Fifth noted that it was receding from several of its previous cases and held that "this court will no longer recognize fundamental error in the sentencing context, contrary to the statements made in (cites omitted)." The Fifth, then, added

> Given our interpretation of section 924.051, we necessarily disagree with contrary results reached by other district court of appeal, particularly insofar as these courts have continued to recognize fundamental error in the sentencing

¹Anders v. California, 386 U.S. 738 (1967).

context. <u>See</u>, <u>e.g.</u>, <u>Chojnowski v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D2500 (Fla. 2d DCA Nov. 19, 1997); <u>Pryor v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D2660 (Fla. 3d DCA Oct. 29, 1997); <u>Johnson</u>, 701 So.2d at 382-383;² <u>Cowan</u>, 701 So.2d at 353;³ <u>Callins v. State</u>, 698 So.2d 883 (Fla. 4th DCA 1997). We also disagree that sentencing errors can be raised on direct appeal without preservation, simply because the sentence that results is illegal. <u>See</u>, <u>e.g.</u>, <u>State v. Hewitt</u>, 702 So.2d 633 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997); <u>Sanders v.</u> <u>State</u>, 698 So.2d 377 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997).

(emphasis added). <u>Id</u>.

This conflict led the Petitioner to seek discretionary review.

²Johnson v. State, 701 So.2d 382 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997).

³Cowan v. State, 701 So.2d 353 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

In interpreting the changes to the relevant portions of the Florida statutes and rules of procedure which deal with preservation of sentencing issues, the Fifth District Court of Appeal specifically noted that its decision necessarily disagreed with the opinions of several other district courts. Therefore, the Respondent acknowledges that this Court can invoke discretionary jurisdiction to resolve this conflict.

ARGUMENT

THE DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT IN THIS CASE IS IN DIRECT CONFLICT WITH DECISIONS FROM THE OTHER DISTRICT COURTS.

This Court has jurisdiction under article V, section (3)(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution where a decision of a district court "expressly and directly conflicts" with a decision of this Court or another district court. <u>See also</u>, Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv). This Court has repeatedly held that such conflict must be express and direct, that is, "it must appear within the four corners of the majority decision." <u>Reaves v</u>. <u>State</u>, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986).

As set out in the Petitioner's brief, the Fifth District Court of Appeal (the Fifth) sitting en banc in the case <u>Maddox v. State</u>, 23 Fla. L. Weekly D720 (Fla. 5th DCA March 13, 1998), elected to address the application of the recent changes in the Florida statutes and the rules of criminal and appellate procedure as to the preservation and appeal of sentencing issues. The Fifth wrote that "[I]t appears that the supreme court has concluded that the notion of `fundamental error' should be limited to trial errors, not sentencing errors." <u>Id</u>. at 721. Later in the decision, the Fifth noted that it was receding from several of its previous cases and held that "this court will no longer recognize fundamental error in the sentencing context, contrary to the statements made in (cites omitted)." The Fifth, then, added

4

Given our interpretation of section we necessarily disagree with 924.051, contrary results reached by other district court of appeal, particularly insofar as these courts have continued to recognize fundamental error in the sentencing context. See, e.g., Chojnowski v. State, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D2500 (Fla. 2d DCA Nov. 19, 1997); <u>Pryor v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D2660 (Fla. 3d DCA Oct. 29, 1997); <u>Johnson</u>, 701 So.2d at 382-383;⁴ <u>Cowan</u>, 701 So.2d at 353;⁵ Callins v. State, 698 So.2d 883 (Fla. 4th DCA 1997). We also disagree that sentencing errors can be raised on direct appeal without preservation, simply because the sentence that results is illegal. See, e.g., State v. Hewitt, 702 So.2d 633 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997); Sanders v. State, 698 So.2d 377 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997).

(emphasis added). <u>Id</u>.

The <u>Sanders</u> case cited by the Fifth held that ". . . illegal sentences necessarily constitute fundamental error, and may therefore be challenged for the first time on direct appeal." <u>Sanders</u>, 698 So.2d at 378. The Fifth wrote in <u>Maddox</u>, "[N]or will this court address illegal sentences on direct appeal, unless the issue has been preserved for review either by objection in the trial court or by means of a 3.800(b) motion for post-conviction relief." <u>Maddox</u>, 23 Fla. L. Weekly at D721. The Fifth did emphasis that rule 3.800(a)⁶ was always available whenever the

^b<u>Cowan v, State</u>, 701 So.2d 353 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997).

⁴Johnson v. State, 701 So.2d 382 (Fla. 1st DCA 1997).

⁶The Fifth also noted that this preservation process placed the investigation and correction of sentencing errors in the court most able to accomplish that task: the trial court.

sentence was illegal and that both unlawful and illegal sentences could be raised on appeal if properly preserved.

Given this specifically recognized conflict by the Fifth in that its <u>Maddox</u> decision is contrary to several other cases from the other district courts of appeal, this Respondent agrees that this Court can invoke discretionary jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

Based on the arguments and authorities presented herein, the Respondent respectfully recognizes that the decision in <u>Maddox</u> is in conflict with other district court decisions and that it is within the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court to hear this case.